MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Meeting

Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, November 10, 2009
I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 10:42 AM by Chairperson Dennis Weimer.  All members were present:


Joanne Shamp


Dennis Weimer

Rochelle Kay



Alan Mandel



Bill Van Duzer



Carleton Ryffel 


 Staff present:  LPA Attorney Anne Dalton; Community Development Director Dr. Frank Shockey.  There were no members of the press or public present.
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. INVOCATION-Ms. Kay
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
A. Discussion of the Residential ROW Connections

Mr. Van Duzer reported that he and Ms. Shamp met with Cathy Lewis to discuss this issue.  Ms. Lewis drafted the document presented to the LPA.  Ms. Shamp asked for LPA comments.

Mr. Mandel complimented the report and agreed with the draft.  Mr. Van Duzer commented on the portion which refers to permit application fees and pointed out what he thought was an error regarding stake-out of the property.  He stated that the fee would not include that but rather the inspection of the stake out.  The correction would be that the permit fee would not include the stake-out itself but only the inspection of it.  He also commented about the “hold harmless” clause and questioned the need for it in the LDC.  Ms. Dalton agreed that it does not need to be in the LDC.  
Ms. Kay referred to page 2 about “expiration exceptions- permits for apron driveways to be constructed as part of a residential house, construction is exempted” and asked why this particular item is exempted from the expiration exception.  Mr. Van Duzer explained and short discussion ensued.  

Mr. Ryffel had comments regarding page 3 and commented that the draft is a good job.  He referred to the top of the page, specifically the word “separation,” and thought that it was not needed.  He was confused by the wording pertaining to driveway aprons and the distance involved, and stated that the draft does not a method for measuring that distance.  Mr. Weimer agreed and some discussion ensued about a method of measure for this.  
Ms. Dalton asked if the draft was meant as a policy direction, with staff crafting the exact language.  She commented as well about the variance measurement item.  Mr. Van Duzer advised that this is just that, a draft for direction.  Ms. Dalton then reserved comment for a later time but added that the draft was well done and commended Ms. Shamp and Mr. Van Duzer.

Dr. Shockey commented about the policy about the separation between driveway connections and intersections, pointing out that there are always exceptions and the policy should be in place for that process to be handled administratively, making it easier for the applicant.  He also had some comments and concerns about the dimensions of the apron and driveway and a discussion ensued.  It was clarified that that 20% referred to in the draft is the maximum, with a minimum of 10%.  
Ms. Dalton asked if the LPA will allow the driveway aprons to be made of porous material.  Mr. Van Duzer said that this was discussed but that this draft was not the proper place to address this.  Mr. Ryffel suggested that that the measurements should include the distance from the centerline of the driveway to the side property line.  After clarification, he retracted this suggestion.

Ms. Shamp commented about “permitting process” on page 1, and is concerned about the use of the word “maintenance” there.  There was some discussion about the general maintenance of the driveways.  

Ms.  Shamp asked for public comment; no public comment. She asked for a general consensus to guide Dr. Shockey for moving ahead with the draft.  The first item was the permit fees and Mr. Van Duzer recommended changing page 1 as he previously mentioned.  All other members agreed to change the wording.  On page 2, #G, “hold harmless” clause, the recommendation was to make reference to an addendum but not to set it out specifically; again, all members agreed.  On page 3, remove the word “separation” and then renumbering of 2, 3 4 and 5; all members agreed.  As mentioned earlier by Mr. Ryffel, the measuring of the driveway dimensions to be reconsidered by Dr. Shockey.  The administrative procedures for variances on narrow lots were discussed and it was agreed that there should be something in place for this; all members agreed.  The last point was review of wording regarding handling non-conforming issues; all members agreed.  
B. Recommendations to Council regarding Alcoholic Beverage Regulations (Resolution 2009-24)
Ms. Shamp thanked Dr. Shockey for his work on this and asked him to address the meeting.  Dr. Shockey referred to the consultant’s report, included in the packets, and stated that it points out that the Town’s LDC contains policy that has not actually been reviewed by the Council but follows the county’s regulations in place at the time LDC Chapter 34 was adopted.  He explained that there are things in those guidelines that typically do not actually apply to the beach and that much of it is outdated, needing revision.  He said that the Council had specifically asked what the LPA would recommend about possibly allowing COP on the beach and whether this is something the LPA wants to take action on or let it stay as is.  Ms. Dalton referred to a comment about inconsistency between the LDC and state law and pointed out that the state law supersedes Town ordinance. 
Ms. Shamp asked for a general consensus for direction of the resolution as a whole. 

There was a majority consensus that the expansion of COP onto the beach should not be allowed, and Ms. Shamp then asked for individual comments.  

Mr. Ryffel said that he would like to see an exemption for the Times Square area and he suggested changing the language in the second page, wherein it states “now therefore be it resolved that the LPA recommends that the Town Council of FMB…” where it has “does and does not,” to say “restrict or not restrict.”  Ms. Dalton helped clear this up and there was brief discussion about it.
Mr. Van Duzer said he is in favor of moving this on.
Mr. Mandel stated that the concern was the lack of consistency in handling the issue of approving COP uses in the past and said this should be handled as a whole package, not just the question of COPs on the beach.  He feels that the resolution they are talking about would only address a piece of that.  Ms. Shamp agreed but reminded that Council advised there were other groups handling some of the other issues such as noise.  

Mr. Weimer commented that he is in favor of this resolution but agrees that this only addresses a specific issue.  He too realizes that the LPA should be working on additional issues to fairly address the problem.

Ms. Shamp added that this would be taking a step in creating the policy.  
She asked Ms. Dalton if the LPA has the authority to continue to establish the policy further.  Ms. Dalton researched this.
Ms. Kay disagreed and feels that the LPA has been trying to look at the whole thing as a package and fix it when it is an issue that needs to be revised one piece at a time.  

Mr. Van Duzer understands that the Council wants the LPA to take one item at a time, as directed by them, give their recommendations and send it back to be looked at by them.  He agrees that this is the way it should be done.  

Ms. Dalton now referred to the LDC sections which apply to the authority to establish the policy, as she read the sections.  She then explained what each section means to the LPA authority and responsibilities and reminded that the code does not preclude the LPA from initiating policy, but that if not given specific direction to do so by the Council, then it may turn out to be unnecessary effort.  Discussion ensued regarding authority, consultants, etc. 
Mr. Weimer stated that this item has been on the agenda for more than 2 years, to review the LDC modifications that had not yet been addressed.  Last year there was a consultant actually hired to take a look and give recommendations, with additional items included by the town manager at the time.  He said the initiative came from the Town Council, originally, over 2 years ago.
Ms. Shamp asked for public comment; no public comment.

Motion:    Ms. Kay moved to accept the resolution, changing the words on the second page wherein it states “whereas the LPA finds that the expansion of the on premises consumption of alcoholic beverages onto the gulf beaches does not protect remaining natural resources and does not preserve the small town character of the Town, and does not protect residential neighborhoods against commercial intrusions, and therefore would not accord the comprehensive plan objectives, etc.”  “Now therefore be it resolved that the LPA recommends that the Town Council for the Town of Fort Myers Beach does restrict further expansion of on premises consumption of alcoholic beverages on the gulf beaches in the Town of Fort Myers Beach.”  
Seconded by Mr. Weimer;

Vote:        Motion passed 5-1 with Mr. Mandel opposing.  
V.      ADJOURN AS LPA; RECONVENE AS HPB
Adjourned as LPA at 11:52 am
Motion:    Mr. Weimer moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB.
Seconded by Mr. Van Duzer;

Vote:         Motion passed 6-0

Ms. Kay called the meeting to order at 11:52 with all members present.
Ms. Kay advised the Historic Committee will meet next week to discuss the next step on the plaque program and other ongoing matters.  She also reported that there is no news regarding budget suggestions they are developing.

With no further comment, the meeting was adjourned.

Motion:   Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the HPB and reconvene as the LPA; 
Seconded by Mr. Weimer;
Vote:        Motion passed 6-0
     Meeting adjourned at 11:54 PM
VI. ADJOURN AS HPB; RECONVENE AS LPA
Ms. Shamp reconvened the meeting at 11:54 PM with all members present.
VII. LPA MEMBER ITEMS AND REPORTS

Mr. Weimer, nothing to report.

Mr. Mandel, nothing to report.

Mr. Van Duzer asked if anyone has applied for the available positions on the LPA.  Ms. Dalton advised that there is an item about this on the Council agenda but didn’t know exactly what it means, whether it is a placeholder or if there are actually applicants.  Mr. Van Duzer said he had 3 interested people and wanted to follow up with them.  After checking, Ms. Dalton advised that Chuck Moorefield has applied and is under consideration.  
Ms. Kay, nothing to report.

Mr. Ryffel, nothing to report.  

Ms. Shamp asked Dr. Shockey about the Newton demolition item on the Council agenda.  He said this is a part of the process for demolition that the HPB included as a condition in the resolution for the certificate of appropriateness and the Council will be looking at taking that step.  
VIII. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS
Nothing to report except that the next meeting will be the Christmas lunch.  Ms. Kay will do an ornament for the LPA for the trees.
IX. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS
Dr. Shockey reported that he put together a schedule of LPA meeting dates and times, second Tuesday of the month at 9:00 AM from now on, except the next meeting on December 15, which is the third Tuesday.
X. LPA  ACTION ITEMS
Resolutions to Town Council:
· Animal Control-long term - Mr. Mandel: January 4, 2010
· Gulfview TBD sometime after vacation ordinance

· Vacation ordinance, continuation of first hearing-December 21, 2009 at 6:30 PM
· Pink Shell-12/7/09 at 9:00 AM - Mr. Weimer or Ms. Kay
· Alcoholic beverages-COP expansion on the beach-Ms. Kay

Continued LPA hearings:  
· Shipwreck - Jan. 12, 2010
Future Work Activites: 
· Resolution LPA 2009-XX Recognition of Dennis Weimer’s service
· Present ROW resolution to Council-2/9/2010
· Storm Water-pending;  Dr. Shockey/Kay/Van Duzer-TBD
· Seasonal Parking- 12/15/09; final review

· Alcoholic Beverages-Dr. Shockey/Mr. Weimer (Discussion ensued as to whether or not to proceed on the other items in this issue other than the COP on the beach – Ms. Shamp polled the members to see who agrees that this should be removed from the list unless asked to proceed by Council.  All agreed to temporarily remove this item until directed by Council.  
· HPB Vistas – Budget Proposal - Ms. Shamp; 12/15/09
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. Melsek expressed his disappointment in the LPA’s “timidity” in not continuing with the COP discussion.  He stated that the LPA has a responsibility to recommend these changes for the beach and he was especially concerned with the issue of the noise connected with this problem.  He opined that the LPA should address this.
Ms. Shamp asked for a motion to adjourn.
Motion:   Mr. Ryffel moved to adjourn.
Seconded by Ms. Kay;
Vote:       Motion carried 6-0.
XII.  ADJOURNMENT
 Adjourned at 12:17 PM.

Next meeting December 15, 2009 at 9:00 AM
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Joanne Shamp, LPA Chair
· End of document
LPA-November 10, 2009
Page 6 of 6

